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PON-14-308 Pre-Application Workshop Questions/Answers
(Responses are in bold and italics)
Federal Opportunity Announcement (FOA) Information
1. Where is there information on the DOE projects under these four FOAs?

The information can be found at www.grants.gov/search-grants.html?fundingCategories%3DEN%7CEnergy.  This website identifies the U.S. Department of Energy solicitations by funding opportunity number. 
Solicitation Process
2. What is the maximum amount of cost share that can be requested for a single project? 
Applicants may request up to 50 percent of the cost share amount required by the FOA. For FOAs that do not have a cost share requirement, applicants may request up to 10 percent of the federal amount requested. The award amount cannot exceed $3,000,000 for Applied Research and Development and $5,000,000 for Technology Demonstration and Deployment. See the table in Part I, Section E.
3. Is the application package for the Federal Cost Share PON the same as typical EPIC PONs?
No, applicants seeking cost share will submit a simplified application package by the due date listed in Part II, Tables 1 and 2 of the application manual. The Stage 1 application package will primarily consist of a Project Narrative form that will be used to score the proposal. The maximum length of the Project Narrative form is 30 pages.
4. Are proposals for this PON scored in a similar manner as other EPIC PONs?
For this solicitation, the scoring criteria have been modified to place greater emphasis on proposed benefits to California and electric ratepayers served by PG&E, SCE, and SDG&E, and less emphasis on the technical aspects that will also be evaluated by the federal agency. 
5. Can I submit my Stage I application after the due dates listed in Part II, Tables 1 and 2?
No.  Failure to submit an application by 3 p.m. (PST or PDT, whichever is being observed) on the due date specified in Part II, Table 1 or 2 is a ground for rejection (see the Screening Criteria in Part IV.E).
6. Will additional FOAs be eligible for cost share from this PON or is it limited to those in Part II, Tables 1 and 2 of the application manual?
Additional FOAs will be eligible for cost share. When a new FOA is posted by the U.S. Department of Energy or another federal agency, staff will review the solicitation to ensure that it is consistent with EPIC program requirements.  Staff will update Part II, Tables 1 and/or 2 of the application manual to reflect any new FOAs. The amended solicitation will be posted and a notification will be sent through the ListServ.
7. Can I notify the Energy Commission of FOAs that could potentially be included in the Federal Cost Share PON?
Yes, please send the FOA name, number, and a webpage link to the Commission Agreement Officer. Contact information for the Commission Agreement Officer is located in Part I, Section H of the application manual. Staff will review the FOA to ensure that it meets the requirements listed in Question 6.
Eligibility Requirements
8. The DOE SHINES FOA (DE-FOA-0001108) application submission date is March 19, 2015 which is after the deadline of January 15, 2015, shown in Table 1 of the CEC EPIC PON 14-308.The first question is regarding the timing. It seems like a full proposal for DE-FOA-0001168 (Advancing Solutions to Improve the Energy Efficiency of U.S. Commercial Buildings) is due to the CEC by December 4, 2014. However, at this point in the process, applicants will not know if their 4-page Concept Paper was accepted/rejected by DOE. Below highlights the DOE schedule for DE- FOA-0001168:
· DOE Concept Paper (4-pages) due 11/22/2014
· DOE Accept/Reject Concept Paper due mid-December 
· DOE Full proposal due January 20, 2015
· DOE Review decision due 2/19/2015 
Is the CEC looking for the submission of the 4-page Concept Paper on Dec.4, 2014 or perhaps the deadlines for CEC could match the Full Proposal submission deadlines of the DOE FOAs? 
Proof of federal application and the DOE acceptance/rejection of the concept paper does not need to be included in the stage one application. Please see the addendum dated November 20, 2014 at http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#PON-14-308. However, if you have received acceptance or rejection of the concept paper from DOE, you should indicate this in the project narrative under item 4i. If your concept paper was rejected, you can still submit an application if you intend to submit a full application to DOE.  However, any Energy Commission funding award is contingent on receiving the DOE award.
9. Page 9 of PON 14-308 specifies that, for Stage 1 applications, applicants must provide a printed copy of an e-mail or letter from the FOA-issuing federal agency confirming its receipt of the application to the FOA. Given that the PON 14-308 application due dates for each of the four current DOE FOAs are before the corresponding DOE FOA full application due date (DE-FOA-0001166, -0001171, -0001108 and -0001168), it is impossible to provide a printed copy of an e-mail or letter from the FOA-issuing federal agency confirming its receipt of the application to the FOA. If the intention of the CEC is to review only those PON 14-308 proposals related to FOA applications that have been submitted to the FOA-issuing federal agency, it would be prudent to move the PON 14-308 application due dates to after the FOA-issuing federal agency’s full application due dates.
The requirement of providing Proof of Federal Application has been removed. Please see the addendum dated November 20, 2014.
10. Page 15 of PON 14-308 specifies that Stage 2 applications are to be submitted following receipt of the federal agency’s notification of an award under the FOAs listed in PON 14-308.  Page 16 of PON 14-308 notes that the following are required as part of a Stage 2 application: proof of federal award, approved federal scope of work, and approved federal budget. Given that the FOAs have an award negotiation period, after which the approved federal scope of work and budget would be available for inclusion in a Stage 2 application, when are the Stage 2 applications due?
There is no specific due date.  However, as funds are available on a first-come, first-served basis, applicants should apply for Stage 2 as soon as all of the following are available: a) proof of federal award, b) approved federal scope of work, and c) approved federal budget. 
11. I would like some clarification about who is eligible to submit proposals to this PON 14-308. It seems to allow only bidders who already have an existing federal contract under DE-FOA-0001166, DE-FOA-0001171, DE-FOA-0001108, and DE-FOA-0001168.  Is that correct? If so, is the PI for that DOE project the only person allowed to bid, or can someone else bid as a prime or subcontract for the DOE PI?

The purpose of this PON is help applicants meet a portion of the federal funding match requirements for FOAs they are applying for, not FOAs for which they have already received a federal award. This solicitation is open to all public and private entities and individuals, with the exception of publicly-owned utilities, that are applying for an eligible FOA.  Please refer to Part II, Section A.1.

12. The table in Section III.A., Application Format, Page Limits and Number of Copies is confusing (Page 12). Request you provide two tables, one for Stage 1 and one for Stage 2, as has been done in previous two stage PONs?
The table on page 12 contains the requirements for all attachments to be submitted with a Stage 1 or Stage 2 application. 
a) The format requirements apply to both Stage 1 and Stage 2
b) The page limits depend on the particular attachment that is required for Stage 1 or Stage 2 submittal. You can use the table on pages 13 and 16 to identify the specific attachments for Stage 1 and Stage 2. 
Stage 1 Requirements:
· Executive Summary Form (Attachment 2) - 2 Page limit
· Fact Sheet (Attachment 3) - 2 Page limit
· Project Narrative Form (Attachment 4) - 30 Page limit
· Project Team Form (Attachment 5) - 2 Page limit for each resume
· Reference and Work Product Form (Attachment 9) - 1 Page limit for each reference, 2 Page limit for each project description
· Commitment and Support Letter Form (Attachment 11) - 2 Page limit
· Number of copies - 7 Hard copies and 1 Electronic Copy
· No page limits for:
· Application Form (Attachment 1) 
· CEQA Compliance Form (Attachment 8)
· Contact List Template (Attachment 10)
Stage 2 Requirements:
· Revised Project Narrative (Attachment 4a) - 30 Page limit
· Number of copies - 7 Hard copies and 1 Electronic Copy
· No page limits for
· Application Form (Attachment 1) 
· Proof of Federal Award
· Approved Federal Scope of Work
· Approved Federal Budget
· Energy Commission Scope of Work (Attachments 6 and 6a)
· Energy Commission Budget Forms (Attachment 7)
Funds Spent in California
13. If LBNL is a co-PI and some of the proposed work, including pilot testing, demonstration and deployment is conducted in California and some of the work is conducted out of state by the other co-PI, then is it correct that the cost share provided by the PON-14-308 will only cover the portion of funding going to California? 
No, EPIC funds and federal funds can be spent outside of California. However, more points will be given to applications that spend a higher amount of requested funds (EPIC and federal combined) in California. Additionally pilot testing, demonstration and deployment projects must be located in California in a service territory served by PG&E, SCE, or SDG&E, as indicated in Part II, B. 3.
14. If a proposed FOA project includes research activities, such as pilot testing, demonstration and deployment conducted within California as well as out of state, can the PON 14-308 cost share be used for research activities outside of California, or must it be used only for research activities within California?
See the response to Question 13.

December 2014	Page 1 of 5	PON-14-308
	Questions and Answers	
